No. 92462-7

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

÷.-

STATE OF WASHINGTON,

Respondent,

Washington State Supreme Court MAR 2 8 2016 Ronald R. Carpenter

v.

CALVIN N. ROUSE, C

Appellant.

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

.

Direct Review of Superior court No. 02-1-02929-1

.

Calvin N. Rouse, Jr., Sui Juris, Private Attorney General Washington State Penitentiary 1313 N. 13 Ave; DE#227; ID#821206 Walla Walla, Washington 99362

I. INTRODUCTION

Appellant, Calvin Norman Rouse, Jr., Sui Juris, acting in his Sovereign capacity as 'Private Attorney General in all matter, seek direct review of superior court decision by supreme court, pursuant to RAP 4.2(a)(1), of Pierce County Superior Court order denying Appellant's 60(b)(5), Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction over the Cause of Action, entered on October 16, 2015; in violation of Superior Court Rule , "Rule CR 60(e)(2), in conjunction to CrR 7.8(c)(3)." RAP 4.2(a), allow a party to seek review in the Supreme Court of a decision of a superior court which is subject to review under Title Two, which in this case at bar, is being appealed under RAP 2.2(10), Order on Motion Denying a Motion to Vacate Judgment. The trial court abused its discretion by failing to obey court order of the Appellant Court and Court Rules governing the procedure.

^{*} Please take note that the Transcript of Proceedings have typo's, the page and line would reflect the correction. Page # 5, line 17 should be replaced with Rule 60(e)(2). Page # 7, line 21, "portending" should read Pertaining. Page # 8, line 19 "calls", should read "charges."

II. ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR

Assignment of Error

2

- No. 1. The trial court erred by fixing an order of August 17, 2015, transferring void judgment motion to the Court of Appeals to be a FRP
- No. 2. The trial court erred in dismissing Appellant's void judgment motion for lack of subject matter jurisdiction entered on October 16, 2015; on a hearing without applying the proper procedure

Issues Pertaining to Assignments of Error

- No. 1. Does a trial court abuse its discretion by fixing an order to transfer a motion proper before it based upon its merits and rules of the court which direct trial court of fixing an order to set a date, time, place for hearing, for all party's to appear and show cause why relief should not be granted., did such action violate CrR 7.8(c)(3)
- No. 2. Does a trial court abuse its discretion when it fail to follow mandatory procedures set out in in a order to show cause and does failure of showing cause entitle the party seeking relief should be granted, did such failure violate CrR 7.8(c)(3)

III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On June 11, 2015, Appellant filed in Pierce County Superior Court, Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction Over the Cause of Action, under Superior Court Rule 60(b)(5), (Hereinafter CR 60"), claiming the judgment is void. In the Motion and other supporting documented evidence presented to the court for resolution to the controversy of the information in conflict of this State Constitution, (<u>See "CP 1-3, 6-42, Memorandum, p.#16</u>). The court or state attorney never respond, file an answer or otherwise defend against the motion as required by law, or at the hearing. Failure to respond or comply with court order is conceding to the motion and failing to comply with an order is consider to be a willful act of exercise of power.

On August 18, 2015, the trial court informed appellant by mail naming. June 11, 2015, fiiling as titled above, while at the same-mentioned date and time, it fixed an fraudulent order to the Court of Appeal ("Hereinafter, COA) ascribing the pleading to being under a completely different statute, to cause procedure bar and to deprive appellant of relief asked, (<u>See</u> <u>Appendix</u>, '<u>A-02</u>, Order, <u>A-03</u>, Court Letter attached hereto.). The tial court make reference of several 'PRP's appellant filed, (<u>See ''RP 9, at</u> <u>lines 1-3</u>.")., as justification of transfer., in violation of CrR 7.8 (c).

On August 24, 2015; the COA fixed an Order Denying Transfer of

- 3 -

the trial court's act of usurpation, it's (COA) order direct the trial court to comply with statute rule. ('A-04') . The statute rule require the trial court to set a time and place of hearing of the party's, for the adverse party to show cause why relief asked should not be granted on the merits of the motion, see CrR 7.8(c)(3), the trial court dismissed the motion on untenable reasons not consistent with the statute nor did the adverse party show cause why relief should not be granted, pursuant to CrR 7.8(c)(3)., in fact, the trial court claimed that the COA's order direct the court to resolve serveral motion's appellant filed, and it was not sure of the COA's reason, the trial court began bring up other matter's, ("RP. 4, at lines 3-19). From the beginning to the date of the hearing, (10/16/15) when the trial court dismissed the motion to dismiss for lack of subject matter jurisdiction over the cause of action, which the court never reached the claim, issues presented for resolution.,("CP-1-3") at the Hearing., ("RP -9, at lines 11-18). This is an incorrect assumption of of the challenge of subject matter jurisdiction over the Cause of Action. The court denied the motion on the ground of being barred on time restraint, (See "RP-9, at lines 19-25, and RP-10, at lines 1-2"). It is held everywhere, that a defense based this lack cannot be waived and may be asserted at any time.

On October 16, 2015, the date of the "so-called show cause hearing," the trial court abused its discretion because it fail to show cause why

- 4 --

relief asked should not be granted, in fact, the motion was denied without a hearing, "RP-8, lines 20-25)(Quoting the court, "You've got a motion to dismiss for lack of subject matter jurisdiction. I read your document. They don't make too much sense, but there was an appeal of this.") Appellant motion was dismissed not on the merits of the motion. Appellant motion stated none of the reasons why the court dismissed his motion, appellant made that clear at, "RP-9, Lines 4-8.")

<u>ب</u>

-- V. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The COA order the trial court to hold a hearing pursuant to Superior Court Rule, "CrR 7.8(c)," in order for the COA to give such a directive is, because it is apparent that Appellant made a substantial showing of merits and require a factual hearing to decide the motion. CrR 7.8 set forth the criteria for seeking relief from judgment and the procedure the trial court must follow in addressing such motions. The court is in direct violation of the statute, it decided the matter on sentencing and time restraint. these issues was not raised in appellant motion. Appellant is entitled to have a hearing on his motion since basis of the motion was based on void judgment under 60(b)(5), which CrR 7.8(b)(4), have criteria on procedure on vacation of judgment. Both, require motion and affidavit stating the grounds upon which relief is asked. The trial court was apprised of the facts and what the adverse party have to defend against. It fail to come forward with any affirmative defense as to why relief asked should not be granted upon the merits of the motion presented.

- 5 -

V. ARGUMENT

No. 1. DOES A TRIAL COURT ABUSES ITS DISCRETION BY FIXING AN ORDER TO TRANSFER A VOID JUDGMENT MOTION FOR LACK OF SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION THAT WAS PROPER BEFORE THE TRIAL COURT BASED UPON COURT RULE WHICH DIRECT THE COURT TO ENTER AN ORDER FIXING THE TIME AND PLACE OF THE HEARING THEREOF AND DIRECTING ALL PARTIES TO THE ACTION OR PROCEEDING WHO MAY BE AFFECTED THEREBY TO APPEAR AND SHOW CAUSE WHY THE RELIEF ASKED FOR SHOULD NOT BE GRANTED. "CR 60(e)(2), 7.8(c)(3)."

Superior Court Rule, "Rule 60(b)" provide a party to file motion and upon such terms are just, the court may relieve a party from final Judgment, in this case at bar, for reason that appellant's judgment is void, under the fourth indicia of the above statute. "Where a case is brought before court on demurerr petition to vacate judgment, court is required to treat allegation s of petition as true, even to the extent that petition pleaded disputed recital in judgment, which petition attacked directly. Ellern, In re (1945), 23 Wn. 2d 219, 160 P. 2d 639. The trial court abused its discretion when it transferred Appellant's Motion/Petition to the Court of Appeals, by order on August 17, 2015; (See Order, 'A-02'). The superior court rule required the trial court to enter an order notifying Mr. Rouse and States attorney of a time and place of the hearing so that the state can bring forth its proof of the charges constitutionally exist as valid laws, as challenged by Mr. Rouse, (See "CP. 1-3"). The state fail to file an answer denying the allegations in the motion and fail to show cause at the hearing on October 16, 2015. This State Court said "While one to whom is

- 6 -

addressed on order to show cause may both demur and answer must be submitted at the same time as the demurrer. State ex rel. Gilbert v. Prosecuting Attorney, 92 Wn. 484; State ex rel. Cummings v. Johnson, 105 Wn. 93. At October 16, 2015, show cause hearing, the court denied the motion without holding a hearing on the merits of the motion, and without hearing the states reason why the court should not grant the appellants'relief, (See "RP. 8, at lines 20-24). The trial court abused its discretion for prematurely denying appellant's motion without the states argument. This is a manifest abuse of authority/discretion. CrR 7.8 set forth the criteria the court must follow. The State is required to show cause why appellant's relief should not be granted. CrR 7.8(c)(3), State v. Smith, 144 Wn. App., at 864. Supreme Court held: in State v. Brazzel, 154 Wn. App 1023 (2010)., that the trial erred when it dismissed Brazzel's motion for relief from judgment without first ordering a show cause hearing as required by CrR 7.8(c)(3), this Court vacate the order. The trial court abused its discretion when it transferred Appellant motion to the COA, in violation of the said-above statute. Rouse is entitled to the same relief as Brazzel.

> NO. 2. DOES A TRIAL COURT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION WHEN IT FAIL TO FOLLOW MANDATORY PROCEDURES SET OUT IN THE COURT OF APPEALS ORDER OF AUGUST 24, 2015, DIRECTING THE TRIAL COURT TO COMPLY WITH SUPERIOR COURT RULE, "RULE CrR 7.8, DOES SUCH FAILURE ENTITLE APPELLANT TO RELIEF ASKED

The day of the show cause hearing of October 16, 2015; the trial made an odd claim that it was not clear of what the Court of Appeals

- 7 -

order directed the trial court to do, the trial court claimed the Order stated several motions to be heard in the trial court, (See "RP. 4, at lines 1-6). The Order of the COA, is dated August 24th, 2015, as the states in the location of the record of proceeding, lines 1, 2. The COA provided appellant with the same Order, which clearly state in pertinent part: "the matter is returned to the superior for further action. CrR 7.8(c).", (See A-03). The way the October 16, 2015, hearing was conducted was an willful act of non-compliance on the court and States attorney. Failure to comply with any court order will be deemed willful if it occurs without reasonable justification. Jones v. City of Seattle, 179 Wn. 2d 322 (2003), Magnona v. Hyundai Motor Am., 167 Wn. 2d 570, 584, 220 P. 3d 191 (2009) (Citing Rivers v. Wash. State Conference of Mason Contractors, 145 Wn. 2d 674, 686-87 & n. 54, 41 P.3d 1175 (2002). This is an manifest abuse of power. As the failure of the trial court to comply with the dictates of the mandatory procedures set out in CrR 7.8(c), with review is based upon an abuse of discretion, it is certain that the decision was manifestly unreasonable, and inexcusable reasons. The fact the the trial court stripped Appellant of his right to be present at the hearing prejudiced the Appellant of the opportunity to enter and present documents pertinent to his claim as evidence to his claim in accordance to ER 904, admissiblity of documents, as well asking the state to present and produce evidence challenged in Appellant's pleadings.

÷8 –

The trial court and States' attorney agreed that Appellant to have an physical appearance then reneged on the agreement, <u>See</u> "RP.-5, at lines 20-25, "RP.-6, at lines 2-3.). The trial court not only exhibit 'bad faith practices, but act arbitrary and capricious by disobeying the law governing the procedure on vacating judgment, <u>"CR 60(b)(5), (e)(2),</u> <u>"CrR 7.8(b)(4), (c)(3)."</u> Appellant is entitled to a fair hearing by a court of integrity and dispense justice, which appellant has been denied on October 16, 2015; at the "show cause hearing." Our State Constitution guarantee a 'fair hearing', Art. <u>1 § 22., CrR 7.8(c)(3)</u>.

Ċ

VI. CONCLUSION

Appellant ask this Court to vacate final judgment of the cause of action of the trial court entered on September 26, 2003, for failure to show cause as directed by the Court of Appeals on August 24, 2016., in alternative remand strict directions to the trial court to hold a hearing on the merits of Appellant's motion under CrR 7.8(c)(3).

Executed on this 21st day of March, 2016; at Walla Walla County Washington.