49447-7-II

NO. 92462-7

RECEIVED
E JUN 24 2016
WASHINGTON STATE
SUPREME COURT

[Handwritten signature]

**SUPREME COURT OF THE
STATE OF WASHINGTON**

STATE OF WASHINGTON, RESPONDENT

v.

CALVIN NORMAN ROUSE, JR., APPELLANT

Appeal from the Superior Court of Pierce County
The Honorable Ronald Culpepper

No. 02-1-02929-1

Brief of Respondent

MARK LINDQUIST
Prosecuting Attorney

By
JAMES SCHACHT
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney
WSB # 17298

930 Tacoma Avenue South
Room 946
Tacoma, WA 98402
PH: (253) 798-7400

FILED AS
ATTACHMENT TO EMAIL



ORIGINAL

B. STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

On June 25, 2002, appellant Calvin Norman Rouse, Jr. (the "defendant") was charged along with two co-defendants with first degree felony murder predicated on robbery. CP 53-56. On August 25, 2003, he pleaded guilty pursuant to a plea agreement to second degree murder. CP 57-68. He was sentenced on September 26, 2003, to a high end sentence totaling 340 months in prison. *Id.* The defendant filed a notice of appeal on October 17, 2003. CP 69. His direct appeal was resolved and his conviction affirmed in an unpublished opinion entered on November 16, 2004. CP 70-79.

This case stems from the denial of a June 11, 2015, post-conviction motion to dismiss for lack of subject matter jurisdiction. CP 1-3. The trial court initially sought to transfer the motion to the Court of Appeals as a personal restraint petition by written order entered on August 18, 2015. CP 80-121 and 122-23. The Court of Appeals rejected the transfer and remanded to the trial court via an order entered on August 24, 2015. CP 125. Thereafter the trial court held a hearing on the motion on October 18, 2015, and denied the motion. CP 126. RP 8-10. This direct appeal followed.

The present direct appeal to this Court was filed on November 4, 2015. In response to clerk's letters, appellant filed a statement of grounds for direct review, but has neither cited nor discussed the jurisdiction statute at issue in his motion and appeal, nor the bases for a direct appeal to this court in RAP 4.2(a).

C. ARGUMENT.

Direct review of a trial court decision to this Court is limited to six potential types of cases. RAP 4.2(a)(1) – (6). It is difficult to determine which of the six the defendant may claim apply to this matter. If interpreted tolerantly, the *original motion in the trial court*, together with the defendant's statement of grounds and opening brief in this Court, could be viewed as an invocation of the second ground, RAP 4.2(b)(2).

Were that to be the case, the defendant would need to show that the trial court's ruling constituted a finding that the superior court jurisdiction statute is "repugnant to the United States Constitution, the Washington State Constitution, a statute of the United States, or a treaty." RAP 4.2(b)(2). That plainly was not the case. CP 126. RP 8-10.

In the event that the defendant is unable to establish a viable basis for direct review to this Court, this case should be transferred to the Court of Appeals, provided the superior court decision was appealable as a matter of right. RAP 4.2(e)(1). In light of RAP 2.2(a)(10), the trial court's denial of the defendant's post-trial motion to dismiss appears to have been appealable as a matter of right. Thus, a clear option in this case is for this Court to transfer this matter to the Court of Appeals.

Were the Court to consider a more liberal interpretation of the appellate rules, there could be another option. The Court could exercise its discretion to resolve this case in a more direct fashion. RAP 1.2 provides this Court with discretion to interpret RAP 4.2(e)(1) liberally so as to "promote justice and facilitate the decision of cases on the merits" and to "waive or alter the provisions of any of these rules in order to serve the ends of justice. . . ." RAP 1.2(a) and (c). There can be no argument that the resources of this Court, the Courts of Appeals, the prosecution, and potentially appellate defense counsel are scarce and should not be harnessed in needless appellate litigation. Accordingly, it would be a reasonable interpretation of RAP 4.2(e)(1) for this Court to decide this

direct appeal on the merits rather than transfer it to the Court of Appeals for further proceedings.

Insofar as the merits are concerned, the defendant's position in this appeal is not well taken. The Washington Constitution and RCW 2.08.010 vest the superior courts with original jurisdiction over "all criminal cases amounting to felony. . . ." Wash.Const. at. IV, § 6. *State v. Golden*, 112 Wn. App. 68, 74, 47 P.3d 587 (2002). *In re Barbee*, 19 Wash. 306, 310, 53 P. 155, 156 (1898)("Such crimes as felonies can only be tried in the superior court and upon indictment or information."). In addition, RCW 9A.04.030(1) provides for "personal jurisdiction over all individuals, including juveniles, who commit crimes in this state." *State v. Golden*, 112 Wn. App. at 74, citing *State v. Werner*, 129 Wn.2d 485, 493, 918 P.2d 916 (1996), and *State v. B.P.M.*, 97 Wn. App. 294, 299, 982 P.2d 1208 (1999); *In re Clark*, 24 Wn.2d 105, 110, 163 P.2d 577 (1945)("The offense with which appellant was charged, and of which he was convicted, is a felony." . . . "The court therefore had jurisdiction of the subject matter" and of "the person of the appellant, for it recites that he appeared in court. . . .")(citations omitted). In short, there is no basis for this Court or the Court of Appeals to conclude that the superior court lacked jurisdiction.

The defendant's argument appears to be based on a claim that the civil rules should have been applied "for the reason that appellant's judgment is void, under the fourth indicia of the above statute." Brief of Appellant, p.6. The trial court correctly stated, "You're not a debtor. You're not a third party intervenor. You're a criminal defendant, so I don't really see what application the civil rules have in your case." RP 5.

There can be no doubt that the prosecution of the defendant for murder was a felony criminal offense. The criminal rules rather than the civil rules applied because they "govern the procedure in the courts of general jurisdiction of the State of Washington in all criminal proceedings and supersede all procedural statutes and rules that may be in conflict and shall be interpreted and supplemented in light of the common law and the decisional law of this state." CrR 1.1. The Court of Appeals correctly decided that CrR 7.8 applied to the defendant's motion when it dismissed the trial court's attempted transfer on procedural grounds. The defendant's motion was not decided as a personal restraint petition but instead was remanded for consideration as a CrR 7.8(c) motion for vacation of judgment. The trial court subsequently convened a hearing on the motion and denied it on the merits. RP 8-10.

The procedural history of this case places the issue of the superior courts' criminal jurisdiction in murder cases before this Court. It would